1992

Mark O. Walsh v. Judith Erickson, Jude Erickson, Peter Van Alstyne, Gerald Robinson : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES INVOLVED

1. WALSH'S SALE OF HIS INTEREST IN THE PARTNERSHIP WORKED A DISSOLUTION OF THE SAME. Questions of law are reviewed for correctness. Kimball vs. Campbell, 699 P.2d 714, (Utah, 1985).

2. ONCE THE DISSOLUTION OCCURRED, THE REMAINING PARTNERS CAN ONLY EITHER WIND UP THE PARTNERSHIP OR CREATE A NEW ONE. Questions of law are reviewed for correctness. Kimball vs. Campbell, 699 P.2d 714, (Utah, 1985).

3. THE REMAINING PARTNERS FORMED A NEW PARTNERSHIP. Questions of law are reviewed for correctness. Kimball vs. Campbell, 699 P.2d 714, (Utah, 1985).

4. AFTER THE FORMATION OF THE NEW PARTNERSHIP, WALSH WAS NO LONGER LIABLE FOR THE JET STAR DEBT. Questions of law are reviewed for correctness. Kimball vs. Campbell, 699 P.2d 714, (Utah, 1985).

5. WALSH WAS NOT LIABLE FOR THE DEBT TO ROBINSON AT ANY TIME. Questions of law are reviewed for correctness. Kimball vs. Campbell, 699 P.2d 714, (Utah, 1985).

6. AFTER THE FORMATION OF THE NEW PARTNERSHIP, WALSH WAS NO LONGER LIABLE FOR DEBT INCURRED IN THE ORDINARY COURSE OF

BUSINESS. Questions of law are reviewed for correctness.
Kimball vs. Campbell, 699 P.2d 714, (Utah, 1985).

7. AFTER THE FORMATION OF THE NEW PARTNERSHIP, WALSH WAS ESPECIALLY NOT LIABLE FOR EXTRAORDINARY DEBT. Questions of law are reviewed for correctness. Kimball vs. Campbell, 699 P.2d 714 (Utah, 1985).

8. EVEN IF WALSH WERE LIABLE FOR DEBTS OF THE NEW PARTNERSHIP, THE SAME WERE TO BE DIVIDED EQUALLY BETWEEN THE PARTNERS. Questions of law are reviewed for correctness. Kimball vs. Campbell, 699 P.2d 714, (Utah, 1985).

9. EVEN IF WALSH WERE LIABLE FOR THE DEBTS OF THE NEW PARTNERSHIP, DEFENDANTS/APPELLEES ARE NOT ENTITLED TO PREJUDGMENT INTEREST. Questions of law are reviewed for correctness. Kimball vs. Campbell, 699 P.2d 714, (Utah, 1985).

10. WALSH, AS A MATTER OF LAW, DID NOT OWE JUDE ERICKSON ANY MONEY. Questions of Law are reviewed for correctness. Kimball vs. Campbell, 699 P.2d 714, (Utah, 1985)

11. THE PARTIES ENTERED INTO A CONTRACT THAT LIQUIDATED THE JUDGMENT ENTERED BY THE COURT. Questions of law are reviewed for correctness. Kimball vs. Campbell, 699 P.2d 714, (Utah, 1985).

12. DEFENDANTS ARE BARRED FROM FURTHER RECOVERY BY VIRTUE OF ACCORD AND SATISFACTION. Questions of law are reviewed for correctness. Kimball vs. Campbell, 699 P.2d 714 (Utah, 1985)

13. DEFENDANTS ARE BARRED FROM FURTHER RECOVERY BY VIRTUE OF PROMISSORY ESTOPPEL. Questions of law are reviewed for correctness. Kimball vs. Campbell, 699 P.2d 714, (Utah, 1985).

14. UNDER NO CONDITIONS WERE THE DEFENDANTS ENTITLED TO AN AWARD OF ATTORNEYS FEES. Questions of law are reviewed for correctness. Kimball vs. Campbell, 699 P.2d 714, (Utah, 1985).

DETERMINATIVE STATUTES

48-1-2 Utah Code Annotated.

48-1-3 Utah Code Annotated.

48-1-8 Utah Code Annotated.

48-1-12 Utah Code Annotated.

48-1-20 Utah Code Annotated.

48-1-24 Utah Code Annotated.

48-1-26 Utah Code Annotated.

48-1-27 Utah Code Annotated

48-1-28 Utah Code Annotated.

48-1-30 Utah Code Annotated

48-1-31 Utah Code Annotated.

48-1-32 Utah Code Annotated.

48-1-33 Utah Code Annotated.

Each of the foregoing are included in the addendum.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is an appeal from the Third District Court, regarding certain rights and duties stemming from the dissolution and recreation of a new partnership.

NATURE OF THE CASE

This case involves the meaning and interpretation of the Utah Code provisions regarding partnerships.

COURSE OF PROCEEDINGS

This matter was heard on April 24 and 25, 1989, before the Honorable Richard Moffat. Various motions were heard, and the Court finally signed the FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW and JUDGMENT, in 1990.

Thereafter the parties worked a compromise and settled the matter, and the Motion for Summary Enforcement of Settlement Agreement, was heard by the Court in February, 1993.

The original matter was appealed and assigned to the Utah Court of Appeals by the Supreme Court.

A second Notice of Appeal was filed on the Motion for Summary Enforcement, which has been assigned to the Court of Appeals, and the two appeals have now been consolidated into the present action.

DISPOSITION IN LOWER COURT

Judge Moffat held for the Defendants on their counterclaim and required Walsh to pay substantial sums to the Defendants. Judge Moffat denied the Motion for Summary Enforcement.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Appellant submits that Judge Moffat made him the guarantor for the success of a new partnership formed after Appellant disassociated himself.

Judge Moffat ruled that Plaintiff was required to pay substantial sums to Defendants for debt incurred after he was no longer involved them, along with prejudgment interest, contrary to law.

Judge Moffat denied the Motion to Summarily Enforce Judgment and awarded Defendants attorneys fees, contrary to law.

ARGUMENT ONE

WALSH'S SALE OF HIS INTEREST IN THE PARTNERSHIP WORKED A DISSOLUTION OF THE SAME.

According to Exhibit 2, Mark Walsh and Judith Erickson, entered into an agreement on May 2, 1985.

The agreement had the following language in Section 1:

Seller shall sell and Buyer shall purchase, Seller's one-third (1/3) interest presently located at 5444 South 900 East, Murray, Utah. The sale includes Seller's rights and interest to the name "Universal Video" and "Universal Video Productions," the lease to the premises, inventory, furniture, fixtures, equipment and accounts receivable owned and used by the Seller in the business.

Appellant submits that such constitutes a dissolution of the Partnership.

The State Legislature defines dissolution in 48-1-26, U.C.A. which provides as follows in the Utah Code Annotated:

48-1-26. "Dissolution defined.

The dissolution of a partnership is the change in the relation of the partners caused by any partner ceasing to be associated in the carrying on, as distinguished from the winding up, of the business.

At the outset of the creation of the Universal Video, in December of 1984, Mark Walsh, explained to Peter Van Alstyne how critical it was to Walsh that he be a signatory on the Partnership account. Walsh felt that this was absolutely critical, as he had just left a partnership where his partner had forged Mark's signature on certain checks, and that had caused a dissolution of the prior partnership. Note the transcript at page 19.

In the early part of 1985, just a few months after the creation of Universal Video Partnership, Walsh returned home a day after payday for certain employees. Upon his arrival, he met with one of the employees and stated that he and Peter would be getting together that day to see that the employees were paid immediately.

The employee responded that she had already been paid. Note the transcript at page 104.

Walsh was furious at this forgery, and so he went to the clearing house to get copies of all of the checks that Peter Van Alstyne had forged. He then met with Peter about the checks, and Peter stated that he forged maybe 2 checks, at the most four. Walsh then produced the copies of the many, many forged checks that Peter Van Alstyne had signed Mari's name to, and Peter Van Alstyne became extremely embarrassed, and then offered to buy Mari's interest in the store, that he and Mark had talked about, about a month before. Note transcript at page 105 as well as page 10.

In addition to the foregoing, the parties agreed to attempt to sell the business as a going concern as early as early March, 1985, after some three plus months of operation. Van Alstyne stated that he and Mari prepared an ad to be run in the paper, in an attempt to sell the business and dissolve the partnership. Note the transcript at page 69.

Consistent with these expressed intentions to disassociate with each other, Walsh sold his interest to Julie Erickson, as

noted above.

Van Alstyne and Robinson were clearly on notice, because Walsh proceeded to have Jude Erickson put on as a signatory on the bank account, and the removal of Mark Walsh, as a signatory. Note pages 35 and 36 of the transcript.

The Partners in Universal Video Partnership, can not in good faith claim that they did not know of this.

In the Utah Code annotated, at 48-1-2 is the following:

INTERPRETATION OF KNOWLEDGE AND NOTICE.

(1) Within the meaning of this chapter, a person is deemed to have knowledge of a fact not only when he has actual knowledge thereof, but also when he has knowledge of such other facts that to act in disregard of them shows bad faith. Note Jenner vs. Real Estate Service, 659 P.2d 1072, (Utah, 1983).

It is without question, that the checking account required two signatures. Peter Van Alstyne could not pay a single bill without Jude Erickson's signature.

It was without dispute, at the lower Court level, that Mark Walsh insisted on being on the account, when he was a partner. So when Jude Erickson's name was placed on the account, and Mark's removed, it was a glowing manifestation to Peter Van Alstyne and Gerald Robinson, that Mark Walsh was disassociated with them in the Universal Video Partnership.

Peter Van Alstyne admitted on the stand that he had forged Mark Walsh's name to many checks, not only without Mark's authorization but absolutely contrary to Mark's expressed direction. Note transcript at page 34.

Van Alstyne and Robinson, were absolutely on notice of the

subject disassociation, as defined by the State Legislature, in 48-1-2, Utah Code Annotated, and it would be bad faith for them to deny that it happened, when it happened.

Immediately after Mark Walsh disassociated with Peter Van Alstyne and Gerald Robinson, Peter and Gerald prepared and sent a letter to the accountant that had done the books up to the time of disassociation. Note Exhibit 7.

In this document, prepared by Peter Van Alstyne who was a graduate of the University of Utah Law School, at page 2 and 3, it states:

Enclosed herewith is payment in the amount of \$425 which we believe to be a fair and equitable settlement for your services. If you are willing to accept this as payment please forward to us all of our financial records now in your possession. Acceptance of this payment will be construed as acceptance of payment in full. in the meantime, we will gladly prepare for Mark Walsh and for all partners a close-of-business tax statement as of the dissolution of that partnership. (emphasis added).

Appellant respectfully submits that it is an inescapable conclusion, that Mark Walsh disassociated himself with the other partners, towards the first of May, 1985, and the same worked a dissolution of the subject Universal Video Partnership.

ARGUMENT TWO

ONCE THE DISSOLUTION OF UNIVERSAL VIDEO PARTNERSHIP OCCURRED, THE REMAINING PARTNERS CAN ONLY EITHER WIND UP THE PARTNERSHIP OR CREATE A NEW ONE.

As noted above, once the disassociation occurred, the Partnership was dissolved as defined in 48-1-26, Utah Code Annotated, as amended in 1953.

The Partnership continues at that point however, as the

remaining Partners have the right to wind up.

In the provisions of 48-1-34 Utah Code Annotated is the following:

48-1-34 RIGHT TO WIND UP

Unless otherwise agreed, the partners who have not wrongfully dissolved the partnership or the legal representatives of the last surviving partner, not bankrupt, has the right to wind up the partnership affairs; provided, however, that any partner his legal representatives or his assignee upon cause shown may obtain a winding up by the Court.

Appellant submits that it is clear in the law, that Peter Van Alstyne and Gerald Robinson, could have wound up the business, liquidated the Partnership assets, and cut everyone's losses.

In the alternative, Peter Van Alstyne and Gerald Robinson, could take on new partners, invested new capital, and started new and fresh, with Mark Walsh, no longer being associated with Universal Video Partnership.

AGREEMENT THREE

THE REMAINING PARTNERS, PETER VAN ALSTYNE AND GERALD ROBINSON TOOK ON A NEW PARTNER, JUDITH ERICKSON, AND STARTED THEIR NEW PARTNERSHIP A FRESH, AND COMPLETELY DISASSOCIATED WITH APPELLANT.

As noted above, Gerald Robinson and Peter Van Alstyne wrote Exhibit 7, to the parties accountant Mr. Roger Kennard, and stated therein:

In the meantime, we will gladly prepare for Mark Walsh

and for all partners a close-of-business tax statement as of the dissolution of the partnership.

In addition to the same, as noted above, Peter Van Alstyne participated in getting Mark Walsh's name off the Partnership account, and replacing the same with Jude Erickson's name.

In addition to the foregoing, Peter Van Alstyne decides, without any notice to Mark Walsh, that he is going to personally prepay the Jet Star obligation.

This obligation was not in default, and while there would be a discount for prepaying the same, there was no need to do the same, other than Peter Van Alstyne, unilaterally decided to do so, because he wanted to be the one who was totally in control.

Not only does Peter Van Alstyne change his position in reference to any antecedent debt, he borrows new money and invests the same into his newly formed partnership. Note Transcript at page 305.

As noted on Exhibit 1, on page one in December of 1984, the parties had entered into the Jet Star contract, which provided the following:

The Promissory Note shall contain a provision entitling the Buyers to a discount from the principal amount thereof in an amount equal to the number of full calendar months remaining on the original term of the promissory note after the date upon which the Buyers pay said note in full, both principal and accrued interest.

Once Mark was out of the partnership, Peter unilaterally decides to take over his interest, and so now he is totally in control of his new partnership.

Concomitantly, Peter Van Alstyne, unilaterally decides to

take advantage of this provision in the original contract, and he then loans his newly formed partnership some \$30,000.00. Five thousand for working capital and the other \$25,000.00 to be applied to the Jet Star Obligation.

Towards the end of the trial, Defendant's call to the stand Mary Van Alstyne, who testified as follows on page 305: "He loaned, May 31st of '85, \$30,000.00, to the business." (emphasis added).

Peter did not have to do this, but apparently he was so excited about his new partnership, and being the only one in control, he unilaterally decided to make this move even though the parties were not in any kind of default in the monthly payments on this contract, and it was undisputed that the business was paying this obligation timely each month.

Almost immediately after creating this new creature, Peter Van Alstyne then attempts to get Jude Erickson to invest with him, and become a full one-third partner in this new venture, rather than a one-third partner, based upon the sale from Walsh.

Peter, a law school graduate, apparently spend a considerable amount of time studying partnership law, in order to draft and send to Judith Erickson, Exhibit 6, on or about June 3, 1985, which states in its entirety as follows:

June 3, 1985 (hand written)

In the formation of a partnership, the ability to contribute capital is of prime importance.

When we realized that Universal Video was not able to continue under the agreements Mark and Peter had with Jet Star, another partner with capital to invest was sought to replace Mark

who had no capital to invest. Towards the end of February and the first of March you, Jude, approached us indicating you had between \$15,000.00 and \$25,000.00 you would like to invest with the intent of becoming a partner. In as much as we liked your rapport with the customers, your drive and excitement in managing the business we felt you would be an excellent partner. We accepted you as a third partner based on the agreement that you and Peter would share equally in the purchase of the approximately \$60,000.00 contract with Jet Star Industries.

When the agreed upon date, May 31, 1985, for settlement with Jet Star industries arrived and you had no money to purchase your share of the contract, you breached a vital agreement which was a condition upon you becoming a partner with us. Peter has purchased the entire contract which, in effect, under Utah Partnership Law included the purchase of your capital share of the partnership. We would still like to have you be a partner in Universal Video but only the following option is available under Utah Partnership Law:

Through your contribution of time and devotion to the partnership you are legally entitled to share in the partnership determined by the value of your time and devotion. Assuming the value of the partnership assets is \$100,000, we felt that a 10% interest is an extremely generous settlement.

In order to provide you still an opportunity to become a full one third partner, we, the two general partners, invite you to meet the terms of the original agreement we had with you by repurchasing from Peter your share of the capital account, which is \$15,00.0. The offer expires Friday, June 7, 1985 at 5:00. If the offer expires we will assume that you accept a 10% interest as outlined above.

As a matter of record, we want to remind you that you were advised at an early date, by us and others, that the purchase agreement you were negotiating with Mark Walsh was, in our opinion, not prudent considering the indebtedness of the partnership at that time. You have been advised many times to obtain an attorney and re-evaluate the position that you are presently in. Our view is unchanged.

We hope that this letter clarifies the current status of the partnership of Universal Video. We look forward to continuing a profitable relationship with you.

/s/
GERALD ROBINSON

/s/
PETER VAN ALSTYNE

Not only did the written agreement from gerald and peter to

Jude, make her a partner, so did the actions of the three after the formation of the newly formed partnership.

As noted on page 46 of the transcript, Peter Van Alstyne testified that when the partners sold the assets of the business in summer of 1986, he had worked with Judith Erickson in the same, in that he kept her posted regarding the same, yet did not even communicate the same to Mark Walsh.

Q. But you did testify that you did in fact report to Ms. Erickson the full terms of the sale of the assets of the partnership, is that correct?

A. The full terms of the sale of the assets?

Q. Yes, in the spring.

A. Like May, '86?

Q. '86.

A. Right, I did.

On the same page Peter Van Alstyne testified, that there was a distribution to Judith Erickson, when the assets were sold, yet there was no distribution to Mark Walsh when the assets were sold.

On page 47, Peter Van Alstyne testified as follows:

Q. Was any payment forthcoming from the partnership after May of 1985 to Mr. Walsh? Any cash or any distribution of any kind?

A. Coming to Mr. Walsh after the sale in June of '85?
(sic)

Q. That's correct.

A. No. Absolutely not.

And that was as it should be, as Mark Walsh, had disassociated himself a whole year before, and the new partnership was formed a whole year before with Peter, Gerald and Judith.

As noted on page 114, when the new partnership gets a new accountant, immediately after the formation of the same, this action was not even discussed with Mark Walsh.,

As noted on page 114, Peter Van Alstyne testified that when he and Gerald were working out the terms of the new partnership with Judith Erickson, these terms were never even communicated to Mark Walsh, and again that was as it should be, because Mark Walsh was out of the old partnership, and these new partners could agree to whatever they wanted and Mark Walsh should not have been included in the same.

No honest person could dispute the undeniable fact, that Peter and Gerald stated in writing, and signed by each of them, that if Jude put up another \$15,000 she would have been a full one third partner, consistent with these new partners prior agreement with her, and if she did not come up with the said \$15,000 she would remain a partner with merely a one-tenth interest.

Also, apparent in this letter by the law school graduate, is the undeniable fact that Peter had been doing certain research in partnership law, regarding his newly formed partnership, and attempted to get Jude to acquiesce to a mere ten percent partner

instead of the full one third partner status sold to her by Mark Walsh.

However, it is not important that Jude be a one third partner or a one tenth partner, what can not be disputed is that Jude was a partner, both before this letter and after, as per these new partners agreement, expressly referred to in this contract, which was reduced to writing and signed by each of the "General Partners."

This letter also confirms the fact that both of these partners were aware that Mark Walsh was getting out some time ago, and that the new partners in the new partnership had felt that the price that Jude was paying to be associated with them, was way too high.

It is most interesting to note the phrase, "another partner with capital to invest was sought to replace Mark Walsh. . ." In other words, Peter Van Alstyne and Gerald Robinson wanted a different partner than Mark, and wanted one who could put up some money. Hardly a situation where they claim they did not know that Mark had sold his interest in the partnership to Jude Erickson, as noted on page 97 of the transcript.

In any event, it is without dispute that Judith Erickson became a partner in the newly formed partnership, whether it be a one-third partner as designated by the sale from Mark Walsh to Erickson, or a one-tenth partner as designated by Van Alstyne and Robinson, is not relevant, what is relevant is that she became a partner.

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