1992

# Mark O. Walsh v. Judith Erickson, Jude Erickson, Peter Van Alstyne, Gerald Robinson : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

### **SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT**

The appeal should be dismissed because appellant made no attempt to marshal the evidence. There is no statement of relevant facts in appellant's brief. The trial court's rulings should be upheld and appellees should be awarded their costs and attorney's fees for defending this non-meritorious appeal.

1. THE APPEAL SHOULD BE DISMISSED FOR APPELLANT'S FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH RULE 24(a)(7) and 24(e) OF THE UTAH RULES OF APPELLATE PROCEDURE.

Rule 24(a)(7) states:

. . . A statement of the facts relevant to the issues presented for review shall follow. All statements of fact and references to the proceedings below shall be supported by citations to the record in accordance with paragraph (e) of this rule.

Rule 24(e) states:

References shall be made to the pages of the original record as paginated pursuant to Rule 11(b), to pages of the reporter's transcript, or to pages of any statement of the evidence of proceedings . . . . References to exhibits shall include exhibit numbers.

There is no statement of facts in the "Statement of the Case" or anywhere else in appellant's brief.

Further, appellant bases his arguments on many facts which were not in evidence at trial, and he fails to cite the source of those purported facts. In Steele v. Board of Review of Indus. Comm'n,

204 Utah Adv. Rep. 33 at 34, 845 P.2d 960 (Utah Ct. App. 1993), this court ruled that

An appellant's brief must contain a "statement of the facts relevant to the issues presented for review," and "[a]ll statements of fact and references to the proceedings below shall be supported by citations to the record." Likewise, subsection (a)(9a) of Rule 24 requires the argument in a brief to contain "citations to the . . . parts of the record relied on" therein. Briefs that do not comply with Rule 24 "may be stricken, on motion or sua sponte by the court, and the court may assess attorney fees against the offending lawyer." Utah R. App. Procedure 24(k).

If a party fails to provide a statement of the facts along with a citation to the record where those facts are supported, we will assume the correctness of the judgment. [Citations.]

If a party fails to make a concise statement of the facts and citation of the pages in the record where those facts are supported, the court will assume the correctness of the judgment below.

2. THE APPEAL SHOULD BE DISMISSED FOR APPELLANT'S FAILURE TO

## MARSHAL THE EVIDENCE.

This court's ruling in Oneida v. Oneida, 236 U.A.R. 24, 25 (Utah App. 1994) places a heavy burden on the appellant who challenges the trial court's findings of fact:

Utah appellate courts do not take trial courts' factual findings lightly. We repeatedly have set forth the heavy burden appellants must bear when challenging factual finding. To successfully appeal a trial court's findings of fact, appellate counsel must play the devil's advocate. '[Attorneys] must extricate [themselves] from the client's shoes and fully assume the adversary's position. In order to properly discharge the [marshaling] duty . . . , the challenger must present, in comprehensive and fastidious order, every scrap of competent evidence introduced at trial which *supports* the very findings the appellants resist.' [Citations.] Once appellants have established every pillar supporting their adversary's position, they then must ferret out a fatal flaw in the evidence and show why those pillars fail to support the trial court's findings. [Citations.] They must show the trial court's findings are so lacking in support as to be "against the clear weight of the evidence," thus making them "clearly erroneous." [Citations.]

. . . Accordingly, "[w]hen the duty to marshal is not properly discharged, we refuse to consider the merits of challenges to the findings and accept the findings as valid." [Citations.]

Not only did appellant make no effort to marshal evidence in his brief, he did not even acknowledge the concept of marshaling evidence in his brief. Because appellant has failed to marshal the evidence. The court should uphold all of the trial court's findings of fact.

**3. APPELLANT HAS FAILED TO ESTABLISH, INDEED HE DID NOT EVEN SHOW AN ATTEMPT TO ESTABLISH, THAT THE TRIAL COURT'S FINDINGS ARE SO LACKING IN SUPPORT AS TO BE AGAINST THE CLEAR WEIGHT OF THE EVIDENCE, THUS MAKING THEM ERRONEOUS.**

Because appellant has failed to meet his burden in challenging the trial court's findings, the findings of fact must be upheld.

**4. THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ABUSE ITS DISCRETION WHEN IT APPLIED UTAH PARTNERSHIP LAW TO ITS FINDINGS OF FACT AND MADE THESE RULINGS**

AND LEGAL CONCLUSIONS [R. at 000543-000566, in addendum attached hereto]:

4.1. In December, 1985, Appellant entered into an oral Partnership agreement with appellees Van Alstyne and Robinson, thus creating the Universal Video Partnership (hereinafter the "Partnership") for the purpose of retail video business.

4.2. The terms of the Partnership Agreement required that, in exchange for Robinson's loan of the \$30,000.00 start-up funds for the business, Walsh and Van Alstyne agreed: (a) to repay Robinson; (b) to be responsible for the partnership business debts; and (c) to share in equal thirds with Robinson the business profits, even though it finally turned out that there were no business profits.

4.3. As a manager of the Partnership's Universal Video business with responsibility to manage the business so as to pay its debts, is responsible to repay Robinson for one-half of Robinson's loans to the Partnership as set forth in the Facts above. The debt to Robinson, after deducting all payments to him to date, totals \$10,718.45 plus interest through May 21, 1989. Robinson is entitled to judgment against Walsh effective May 21, 1989 against Walsh for one-half of that sum, \$5,359.23.

4.4. Pursuant to the terms of the Partnership agreement Walsh and Van Alstyne, and not Robinson, were equally responsible for the business debts to Chytraus, Jet Star, Oakwood, and other business creditors. Pursuant to his right of contribution per Section 48-1-15(1), Utah Code, as amended, Van Alstyne is entitled to judgment against Walsh effective May 21, 1989, for \$24,346.82, which represents one-half of Van Alstyne's \$48,693.65 payments to creditors with his own money.

4.5. Walsh is liable for breach of fiduciary duty to Van Alstyne and Robinson. For Walsh's breach of fiduciary duty to Van Alstyne, Van Alstyne should be granted judgment against Walsh for \$24,346.82 actual damages. For Walsh's breach of fiduciary duty to Robinson, Robinson should be granted judgment against Walsh for \$5,359.23 actual damages.

The trial court found by clear and convincing evidence that Walsh breached his fiduciary duty to Van Alstyne and Robinson in many ways. First, before borrowing the \$30,000.00 from Robinson to purchase the Universal Video business under the Jet Star Contract, Walsh was wary of the debt service on the contract and was concerned that the business revenue would not cover the debt serve, let alone the loan payments to Robinson



and the other business debts, and yet he borrowed the \$30,000.00 from Robinson and had Van Alstyne cosign with Walsh on the underlying contracts and personal guarantee to Chytraus without warning Van Alstyne and Robinson of the risk involved.

Second, Walsh breached his fiduciary duties when he abandoned the Partnership May 2, 1985, leaving Van Alstyne to manage and pay the debts of a business in which he had virtually no experience, and leaving the debt to Robinson unpaid.

Further, Walsh breached his fiduciary duties when he attempted to sell his partnership interest to Erickson without fully disclosing to Van Alstyne and Robinson the terms of the sale and without informing them that he received \$5,500.00 from Erickson.

The trial Court found by clear and convincing evidence that the said breaches of fiduciary duty were done by Walsh in a manner that showed a knowing and reckless indifference to and disregard of the rights of Van Alstyne and Robinson, and that Walsh either knew or should have known that he said conduct would, in a high degree of probability, result in substantial harm to Van Alstyne and Robinson. Appellant has failed to rebut those judicial findings.

**4.6. The Sales Agreement entered into by Walsh and Erickson May 2, 1985 is void for lack of consideration and void for failure of consideration.**

Even if the Sales Agreement were not void for lack of consideration, it is void for failure of consideration. Section I of the Agreement purported to convey to Erickson all of Walsh's one-third partnership rights and interest in the Universal Video business. Walsh did not have the authority or right to convey his Partnership rights. Walsh's sale to

Erickson was tantamount to the proverbial "sale of the Brooklyn Bridge". Walsh's promise to convey all of his partnership rights to Erickson was illusory because it required approval (never obtained) by Van Alstyne and Robinson.

When there exists only the facade of a promise, i.e., a statement . . . such . . . that the person making it commits himself to nothing, the alleged "promise" is said to be "illusory". An illusory promise, neither binds the person making it, [Citation], nor functions as consideration for a return promise.

Resource Management Company v. Weston Ranch and Livestock Company Inc., 706 P.2d 1028, 1036 (Utah 1985). Thus the Sales Agreement is void for lack of consideration because Walsh's promise to convey his Partnership rights to Erickson was illusory because it committed Walsh to nothing because he had no legal right to make that commitment without consent from Van Alstyne and Robinson.

**4.7. Even if the Sales Agreement were not void for lack of consideration, it would be void for failure of consideration.**

When consideration is lacking, there is no contract. When consideration fails, there was a contract when the agreement was made, but the promised performance has failed. DeMentas v. Estate of Tallas, 95 Utah Adv. Rep. 28 (Utah App. 1988). Walsh failed to deliver the consideration (his Partnership rights) to Erickson because he was never authorized to do so by the other partners, Van Alstyne and Robinson.

**4.8. All partners' consents are required for sale of partner's rights:** Pursuant to Sections 48-1-21 and 48-1-24, Utah Code, as amended, both Van Alstyne's and Robinson's consent would be required to imbue Erickson with Walsh's Partnership rights (as opposed

to his mere Partnership interest, which is the partner's right to profits) to manage or administer Partnership business or affairs.

**4.8.1. Neither Van Alstyne nor Robinson consented, either explicitly or implicitly, to the Walsh-Erickson Sales Agreement.**

Van Alstyne and Robinson did not even see the document until this lawsuit was filed. After Erickson signed the documents and began paying Walsh the \$500.00 monthly installment, several months of arguments ensued between Erickson and Van Alstyne because Van Alstyne and Robinson did not ever accept Erickson as a full one-third partner to replace Walsh.

**4.8.2. Neither Van Alstyne nor Robinson released Walsh from his Partnership obligations.**

The fact that Van Alstyne and Robinson made significant Partnership business decisions after May 1, 1985 without consulting Walsh does not imply a release of Walsh or a consent to his sale to Erickson. Walsh abandoned the partnership May 2, 1985. Section 48-1-6, Utah Code, as amended, provides that a partner who abandons the Partnership business does not have to be included in other partners' decisions to sell or assign Partnership property. There was no novation to substitute Erickson for Walsh to pay Walsh's Partnership obligations. "For a novation to occur, there must be (1) an existing and valid contract, (2) an agreement to the new contract by all parties, (3) a new valid contract, and (4) an extinguishment of the old contract by the new one." Hormana v. Gordon, 740 P.2d 1346, 1352-1353 (Utah App. 1987).

**4.9. Neither mistake of fact nor mistake of law by Erickson or Walsh would validate the Walsh-Erickson Sales Agreement.**

Even if Walsh and Erickson both mistakenly believed when they entered in to the Sales Agreement that Van Alstyne and Robinson had consented to the Agreement, that mistake would not be grounds for validating the Sales Agreement. Mooney v. GR and Associates, 746 P.2d 1174 (Utah App. 1987). To allow such a mistake of fact to validate the Sales Agreement would be analogous to validating a contract for sale of the Brooklyn Bridge by a seller who believed he had legal rights to sell the bridge but who in fact did not. Rather than being validated because it was obtained by mistake, the Sales Agreement is voidable because obtained by mistake.

As to mistake of law, ignorance of the law is no excuse. Walsh's or Erickson's mistake in legal interpretation of the Sales Agreement (mistakenly believing the Agreement was legally valid because of mistaken belief that partner's consent is not legal requirement for other partner's sale of his Partnership rights) would not be grounds sufficient for validating the Agreement. Kiahtipes v. Mills, 649 P.2d 9 (Utah 1982).

**4.10. The Walsh-Erickson Sales Agreement is not severable so as to make Erickson liable to Walsh for the \$10,000.00 contract price and award her only Walsh's Partnership interest (right to accounts receivable) instead of all of his Partnership rights.**

Partners' management rights are not assignable without the other partners' consent. There is no severability clause in the Sales Agreement. Section I of the Sales Agreement purports to sell all of Walsh's Partnership rights and interest in one total package. The Sales Agreement does not break down the \$10,000.00 sales price into units separately

specifying a certain sum for Walsh's Partnership rights and another sum for Walsh's Partnership interest. Further, there was no indication by Walsh or Erickson at trial of any intent by either of them that the contract be severable. "A contract is severable or entire depending on the intent of the parties at the time they entered into the contract." Management Services Corp. v. Development Associates, 617 P.2e 406, 408 (Utah 1980).

**4.11. Appellant's "Motion for Summary Enforcement of Settlement Agreement" should be denied and Defendants should be allowed to collect their judgments against Plaintiff for \$3200.00 attorney's fees incurred in defending against the motion.**

As with the other issues, appellant made no attempt to marshal the evidence to attack the trial court's findings. There is no credible evidence of any settlement agreement. Indeed, appellant's own arguments at trial supported appellees' firm position that their judgments entered against appellant in the first trial had not been satisfied, settled, or otherwise liquidated.

**5. THE ISSUES WHICH APPELLANT RAISES FOR THE FIRST TIME ON APPEAL ARE NOT PROPERLY BEFORE THIS COURT.**

Appellant's arguments number THREE, FOUR, FIVE, SIX, SEVEN, EIGHT, NINE, and TEN should be stricken because they are all based on erroneous and unsubstantiated facts and conclusions contrary to the findings of fact in the court below.

Appellant's arguments number TWELVE and THIRTEEN should be stricken because they raise issues not raised at the trial court level. John Deere v. A&H Equipment, 241 U.A.R. 17.

### CONCLUSION AND STATEMENT OF RELIEF SOUGHT

The appeal should be dismissed forthwith so that appellees may proceed to collect their long overdue moneys for judgments awarded them by the trial court:

Judgments entered almost 4 years ago, October 30, 1990, for Defendants against Plaintiff, (not including interest since May 31, 1990 or post-judgment costs) **total \$51,563.54** as follows:

#### Judgment for Erickson:

\$5,500.00	Principal judgment for Erickson
+2,755.75	10% pre-judgment interest from 10/31/85
<hr/>	<u>through 10/31/90 (\$1.51 per diem)</u>
\$8,255.75	TOTAL JUDGMENT with pre-judgment interest through
10/31/90	
+ 1,566.38	12% post-judgment interest from 10/31/90
<hr/>	<u>through 5/31/92 (\$2.71 per diem)</u>
<b>\$9,822.13</b>	<b>TOTAL JUDGMENT PLUS INTEREST FOR ERICKSON</b>
	<b>THROUGH MAY 31, 1992</b> (does not include post-judgment
	costs, and does not include interest accruing
	on judgment at 12% per annum after May 31, 1992)

#### Judgment for Robinson:


\$5,359.23	Principal judgment for Robinson
+ 1,849.26	10% pre-judgment interest from 5/21/87 through
<hr/>	<u>10/31/90 (\$1.47 per diem)</u>
\$7,208.49	TOTAL JUDGMENT with pre-judgment interest
	through 10/31/90
+ 1,396.86	12% post-judgment interest from 10/31/90
<hr/>	<u>through 5/31/92 (\$2.37 per diem)</u>
<b>\$8,578.35</b>	<b>TOTAL JUDGMENT PLUS INTEREST FOR ROBINSON</b>
	<b>THROUGH MAY 31, 1992</b> (does not include post-judgment
	costs, and does not include interest accruing
	on judgment at 12% per annum after May 31, 1992)

**Judgment for Van Alstyne:**

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